TSBPME Case No. 13-019

IN THE MATTER OF BEFORE THE TEXAS STATE

BHAVESH SHAH, D.P.M. § BOARD OF PODIATRIC
§ MEDICAL EXAMINERS
AGREED ORDER §
§ SITTING IN AUSTIN,
§
LICENSE No. 1503 TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS
AGREED ORDER

BE IT REMEMBERED that on the date approved and entered below came to be considered
the allegations against Bhavesh Shah, DPM. By letter dated February 23, 2013 the staff of
the Texas State Board of Podiatric Medical Examiners (the “Board”) gave preliminary notice
to Dr. Shah of its intent to investigate complaints, concerns or reports filed against him. Dr.
Shah was duly notified of the allegations against him. Dr. Shah has cooperated with the staff
of the Board and was given the opportunity to present information in rebuttal.

By his signature on this Order, and upon acceptance and entry of this Order by the Board, Dr.
Shah does hereby waive his right to an administrative hearing before the State Office of
Administrative Hearings, and judicial review of this Order. Dr. Shah understands that he has
the option, before signing this Agreed Order, to participate in a contested case hearing under
the Administrative Procedure Act.

The Board and Dr. Shah, in order to avoid the expense, delay and uncertainty of a hearing,
have agreed to the entry of an Order dispensing with the need for further action in this matter.
Dr. Shah agrees to this Order for the purpose of resolving this proceeding only. The Board
makes the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and enters this Order:

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Dr. Shah is licensed as a podiatric physician in the State of Texas (License Number
1503) to practice podiatric medicine and is therefore subject to the jurisdiction of the
Board, the Podiatric Medical Practice Act of Texas and the rules of the Board.

2. Dr. Shah was provided with a Notice of Violation and given the opportunity to
respond to the Notice and to show compliance with the law.

3. On August 21, 2012, regarding Case No. SA-12-CR-792-FB adjudicated in the
United States District Court, for the Western District of Texas (holding Session in
San Antonio, TX), Dr. Shah plead guilty to felony Counts One (1) and Two (2) of the
Information charging violations of 18 U.S.C. §1347 “Health Care Fraud”.

4, On December 21, 2012, Dr. Shah was convicted of felony Count One (1) and felony
Count Two (2) of “Health Care Fraud” (18 U.S.C. §1347) and sentenced to Five (5)
years probation on Counts One (1) and Two (2) to be served concurrently, and
ordered to pay restitution.

5. The felony conviction is directly related to the Medicare and Medicaid programs
within Dr. Shah’s healthcare provider licensure as a podiatric physician. Restitution
attributed to Dr. Shah’s criminal conduct was ordered at $73,344.88 to the U.S.
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Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), Medicare Insurance Program and
at $10,409.57 to the Texas Health and Human Services Commission, Medicaid
Insurance Program for a total of $83,754.45 (Medicare/Medicaid).

On January 9, 2013 Dr. Shah’s Judgment In A Criminal Case was final.

Dr. Shah has paid the restitution ordered in full and is cooperating with the terms of
his federal probation.

Dr. Shah is involved in various humanitarian mission work activities' in Central
America providing podiatric medical care to underserved populations.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Dr, Shah is required to follow the provisions of the Podiatric Medical Practice Act,

- Texas Occupations Code, §202.001, et seq., and the associated rules of the Board, 22

Texas Administrative Code § 371.1, et seq..

Texas Occupations Code, §53.021(a)(1) provides that, “a licensing authority may
suspend or revoke a license, disqualify a person from receiving a license, or deny to a

person the opportunity to take a licensing examination on the grounds that the
person has been convicted of an offense that directly relates to the duties and
responsibilities of the licensed occupation.”

Texas Occupations Code, §202.253(2)(2)(A) provides that, “the Board may refuse to
issue a license to practice podiatry to a person, for being convicted of a felony.”

Texas Occupations Code, §202.253(a)(4) provides that, “the Board may refuse to
issue a license to practice podiatry to a person, for engaging in grossly unprofessional
or dishonorable conduct of a character that in the Board’s opinion is likely to deceive
or defraud the public.”

Texas Occupations Code, §202.253(a)(5) provides that, “the Board may refuse to
issue a license to practice podiatry to a person, for directly or indirectly violating or
attempting to violate this chapter or a rule adopted under this chapter as a principal,
accessory, or accomplice.”

Texas Occupations Code, §202.501(a) provides that, “the Board shall revoke or
suspend a license; place on probation a person whose license has been suspended, or
reprimand a license holder for violating the law regulating the practice of podiatry or
a rule adopted by the board.”

Texas Occupations Code, §202.5015 provides that a license holder who engages in
conduct described by Section 202.253 violates this chapter.

22 Texas Administrative Code, §375.3(a)(1) provides that, “(a) The health and safety
of patients shall be the first consideration of the podiatric physician. The principal
objective to the podiatric profession is to render service to humanity. A podiatric
physician shall continually strive to improve his medical knowledge and skill for the
benefit of his patients and colleagues. The podiatric physician shall administer to
patients in a professional manner and to the best of his ability. Secrets and personal
information entrusted to him shall be held inviolate unless disclosure is necessary to
protect the welfare of the individual or the community. A podiatric physician shall be
temperate in all things in recognition that his knowledge and skill are essential to
public health, welfare, and human life. (b) A licensed podiatric physician shall
conduct his practice on the highest plane of honesty, integrity, and fair dealing and
shall not mislead his patients as to the gravity of such patient's podiatric medical
needs.”
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22 Texas Administrative Code, §376.3(a)(1) provides that, “a podiatric physician who
violates a board rule, order, or any provision of the Act shall be subject to the
following disciplinary action: suspension, revocation, reprimand or probated
suspension of the license to practice podiatric medicine.”

The Findings Of Fact numbers 1 through 6 establish that Dr. Shah violated: Texas
Occupations Code, §53.021(a)(1), Texas Occupations Code §202.253(a)(2)(A) and
Texas Occupations Code §202.253(a)(4) in that he was convicted of felony “Health
Care Fraud” (18 U.S.C. §1347) directly related to the Medicare and Medicaid
programs within his licensure as a podiatric physician.

ORDER

. Dr. Shah’s license to practice podiatric medicine, license no. 1503, is hereby

Suspended for a term of five (5) years from the date of approval of this Agreed Order
by the Board. The entire Suspension is Probated, conditioned upon the successful
completion of the provisions set forth below.

During the 5-year Probated Suspension:

Dr. Shah shall pay to the Board an administrative penalty of $10,000.00 (Ten
Thousand Dollars and no/100) fully due and payable within 90 (ninety) days after the
effective date of this Agreed Order. Pursuant to Texas Occupation Code §202.552,
the fine amount is based on $5,000.00 each for felony Count One (1) and felony
Count Two (2) of “Health Care Fraud” (18 U.S.C. §1347).

Dr. Shah’s payment of the administrative penalty shall be made by cashier’s check or
money order made payable to the order of the Texas State Board of Podiatric Medical
Examiners and shall be either delivered to the Board’s offices in Austin, Texas, or
mailed to the Board at P. O. Box 12216, Austin, Texas 78711-2216.

If Dr. Shah fails to make payment to the Board as set forth in this Agreed Order or
fails to comply with any other term of this Agreed Order, the Board may rescind the
probation, enforce the suspension and may file additional violations of the Act and/or
Board rules.

. Dr. Shah takes notice that 22 Texas Administrative Code, §375.3(a)(1) provides that,

“(a) The health and safety of patients shall be the first consideration of the podiatric
physician. The prineipal objective to the podiatric profession is to render service to
humanity. A podiatric physician shall continually strive to improve his medical
knowledge and skill for the benefit of his patients and colleagues. The podiatric
physician shall administer to patients in a professional manner and to the best of his
ability. Secrets and personal information entrusted to him shall be held inviolate
unless disclosure is necessary to protect the welfare of the individual or the
community. A podiatric physician shall be temperate in all things in recognition that
his knowledge and skill are essential to public health, welfare, and human life. (b) A
licensed podiatric physician shall conduct his practice on the highest plane of
honesty, integrity, and fair dealing and shall not mislead his patients as to the gravity
of such patient's podiatric medical needs.” ‘

Dr. Shah shall comply with the terms of his five (5) year federal criminal probation as
required by the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas. Upon
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11.

12.

13.

compliance, Dr. Shah shall present documentation to the Board indicating the
successful completion of his criminal probation terms.

Dr. Shah shall attend annually the American College of Foot & Ankle Surgeons
“Billing & Coding” course or the equivalent as approved by the Board. This
requirement is in addition to the fifty (50) hours already required by law for every
biennium, The total number of required hours of CME for each reporting period must
be completed and reported to the Board by November 30" of each of the five years of
the probation.

Dr. Shah shall attend the first Board meeting of each calendar year to briefly report
about his progress during the probation. Board staff shall inform Dr. Shah of the
meeting date, time and location prior to each meeting. If he is unable to attend a
particular meeting as required, Dr. Shah shall inform Board staff and make alternative
arrangements with Board approval.

Dr. Shah shall abide by all federal or state laws and rules regulating Podiatric
Medicine in the State of Texas.

Dr. Shah shall permit a Board representative or staff member to periodically enter his
place of business and/or the facility at which he previously maintained an office,
announced or unannounced, during the hours of 8:00 am. to 5:00 p.m. on any
weekday that is not a federal holiday to ensure compliance with this Order, and to
ensure proper medical records are maintained; including applicable billing records.
Failure to comply with the terms of this Agreed Order shall result in the automatic
lifting of the probated nature of the suspension resulting in the immediate non-
probated suspension of Dr. Shah’s license under the authority of the Board’s
Investigative Committee to include revocation of license. The Board may seek
judicial relief to enforce the terms of this Agreed Order.

The terms of this Agreed Order, if accepted by the Board, become effectlve upon
approval of the Board.

If Dr. Shah fully complies with the terms of the Agreed Order, the Boald agrees not
to bring any further disciplinary action regarding the facts that are the subject of this
Order.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Effective Date. This Agreed Order shall take effect and become binding upon the
approval by the Board.

No Waiver. No waiver of any of the terms of this Agreed Order shall be valid
unless in writing. No waiver of default of any terms of the Agreed Order shall be
deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach or default of the same or similar nature.
Governing Law. This Agreed Order is entered into pursuant to and shall be
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas including Tex. Occup.
Code Ann., §202.001 et seq., the Podiatric Medical Practice Act; and Tex. Gov'’t
Code Ann., $§2001.001 et seq., the Administrative Procedure Act.

Acknowledgment of Entire Agreement. Dr. Shah acknowledges that he has
carefully read this instrument, including all documents or exhibits, if any, that are
refered to, that this instrument expresses the entire agreement between the parties
concerning the subjects it purports to cover, and Dr. Shah has executed this
instrument freely and of his own accord.
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5. Notice. Any notice to be given under the terms of this Agreed Order by either party
to this order shall be in writing and shall be delivered by personal delivery or
certified mail, return receipt requested, to the following addresses:

Bhavesh Shah, DPM

P.O. Box 40055 RECEEVED

San Antonio, TX 78229

Texas State Board of Podiatric Medical Examiners MAR 25 2013

P.O. Box 12216

Austin, TX 78711-2216 TEXAS PODIATRIC
MEDICAL EXAMINERS

6. Upon approval of this Agreed Order by the Board, the Presiding Officer and the
Executive Director are authorized to sign the Order on the Board’s behalf.

I, BHAVESH SHAH, DPM, HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE FOREGOING ORDER. I
UNDERSTAND THAT BY SIGNING, I WAIVE THE RIGHT TO A HEARING BEFORE THE STATE
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS AND TO JUDICIAL REVIEW OF THE AGREED
ORDER. I SIGN IT VOLUNTARILY. I UNDERSTAND THE AGREED ORDER CONTAINS THE

ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND THERE IS NO OTHER AGREEMENT OF ANY KIND, ORAL, _.

WRITIEN OR OTHERWI
Tl V1 gtz

Bhavesh Shah, DPM Date
IN THE STATE OF TEXAS S

o IR 0§ 0/19/20lG
COUNTYOF Jravis 7§

BEFORE ME, on this day personally appeared Bhavesh Shah known to me, who ﬁrst
being duly sworn, signed the foregoing Agreed Order in my presence.

SIGNED on this the QSTR— day of {Y\a rCB, 2013.
Oanie Nangs CLA @\9@%{\

(Printed Name of Notary Public) 0 alﬁ Public, in and for the State di Texas

APPROVED AND ENTERED by the Texas State Board of Podiatric Medical

Examiners on tlns the | 2‘“" day of /XU9V. , 2013, after a Board yote.
Travis A. Motley, DPM i; Mr.¥YHemant Makan
Board President Executive Director
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 2] AUs

WESTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
SAN ANTONIO DIVISION e B s

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,
CRIM. NO.

V.

BHAVESH J. SHAH, (1),
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Defendant,

PLEA AGREEMENT
The United States of America, by and through the United States Attomey ‘for the Western
District of Texas (hereinafier referred to as “the Govermment”), and Defendant BHAVESH J.
SHAH, (heréinaﬂ‘er referred to as “Defendant”), individually and by end through Defendant’s
counsel, hereby enter into the following.plea agresment in the above-referenced cause pursua;t
to Rule 11(c)(1)(C) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure:

L
Count(s) of Conviction

The Defendant, BHAVESH J, SHAH, agrees to plead guilty to Counis One and Two of
ihe Information in this cause, charging 11{6 violations of Title 18 U.8.C, § 1347, Health Care
"Fraud,

1L
Range of Punishment

The Defendant, BHAVESH.J, SHAH, understands that the range of punishunent for each
‘count is a term of imprisonment of not more than ten (10) years, a fine of not more then

$250,000,00, a term of supervised release of not more than three (3) years, end a $100 special
1

A rue gepy of the eriginal, | certl
- WILLIAM G, PLHNICKI v
Clerk, U. 8, District Court

By )\/ , rbmﬁw”/”‘

" Deputy Clerls
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pssessment, as well as an‘order of restitution. The Defendant acknowledpes having discussed
this range of punishment and penalties with counsel and wanis to persist in entering a plea of
guilty, Once the guilty plea is entered, except fgr exceptional circamstances, the defendant will
not be allowed to withdraw the plea of guilly.

I,

The Defendant, BHAVESH J. SHAH, agrees fo pay restitution at the time of sentencing
in'the amount of $83,754'.45, jointly and severally with codefendant Andrea Tturrieta,

IV,
Imposition of Sentence

The parties agree that, pursuant to Fed R.Crim.P, 11(c)(1)(C), a sentence of five years
probation would be an appropriate sentence and disposition for this case and hereby request that
this Court agree to be bound by the terms of this plea agreement, Should the Court reject the

agreement of the parties, the Defendant will not be bound by the plea of guilty or this plea

agreement,

V.
‘Waiver of Riphts

The Defendant, BHAVESH J, SHAH, acknowledges that by pleading guilty, the
Defendant will be waiving sach of the following rights.

The right o plead not guilty and persist in that plea.
The right to a speedy and public jury trial. -
The right to assistance of counsel at that trial and in any subsequent appeal.
The right to remain silent af {rial.
The right to testify at trial,
The right to confront and cross-examine goyemment witnesses.
The right to present evidence and witnesses on {the Defendant’s own behalf,
The right to compulsory process of the court.
The right to be presumed innocent,
The right to a unenimous guilty verdict:
2
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K The right to appeal a guilly verdict,

VL
Waiver of Appeal and Collateral Altacl

The Defendant, BHAVESH J. SHAH, is aware that any sentence imposed can be up to
the maximum allowed by statute for the offense(s) to which the Defendant is pleading puilty.
The Defendant is also aware that the sentence to be imposed s not subject to parole. By entering
into this plea agreement, and as a term of ihis plea agreement, the Defendant ‘voluntarily and
knowingly waives any right to appeal the sentence on any ground, including any appeal right
conferred by 18 U.S.C. § 3742, as amended by the United States v, Booker case Gitec‘l.abova.

The Defendant, BHAVESH‘ ). SHAH, also volintarily and knowingly walves the right to
contest 1hr:§ sentence in any post-conviction proceeding, including but notlimited' to, aproceeding
pursuant to 28 U.8.C, § 2255; provided however, that consistent with principles of profassionai
responsibility imposed on the Defendants counsel and counsel for, th_e Govemmment, the
Defendant does not waive t.he right to challenge the sentence to the extent that it is the result of 2
violation of the Defendant's constitutional rights based on claims of ineffectivé assistance of
counsel or prosecutorial misconduct of constitutional dimension,

The Defendant, BHAVESH J, SHAH, waives all tights t.o challenge the sentence
imposed, knowing ;chat the Court has mot yet determined that sentence, The Defendant
vndersiands and ‘agrees that any estimate of .the probable sentencing range that may be received
from defense counsel, the Government, or the United States Probation Office is not a promise,
did not induce the guilty plea or this waiver, and does not bind the Govemment, the United
States Probation Office, or the Cowt In oflier words, the Defendant understands that the.

Defendant may not challenge the sentence imposed by the District Court, even if it differs
3
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substanﬁall'y from any sentencing range estimated by defense counsel, the attorney for the
Government, or the United States Probation Officer. Realizing the uncerlainty in estimating
what sentence the Defendant will ultimately receive, the Defendant knowingly and voluntarily
waives any rights to appeal lhe sentence or conlest it in any post-conviction proceeding in
exchange for the concessions made by the Government in this plea agresment,

v

Assistance of Counsel

The Defendant acknowledges that the Defendant has reviewed.the merits of the charges
and all possible defenses with counsel, including, but no{ limited to, the right to file motions with
the Court. The Defendant acknowledges that the Defendant has had suffici eq’c time 1o consult
with defense counsel on such matters and all possible defenses, The Defendant further
acknowledges by signing this Agreemgnt that the Defendant believes the Defendant has received
effective assistance of counsel and has had sufficient time to consult with defense counsel
regarding the plea agreement and {he punishment that could be imposed, The Defendant
voluntarily and knowingly waives the right to file pretrial moﬁops, to l;ave ahearing on any‘such
pretrial motion, previously filed or otherwise, and to have atral on the charges-brought against
the Defendant in this case,

YIIL .
Defendant’s Waiver of Right to Seek Attorneys’ Fees

The Defendant hereby stipulates and agrees that by reason ofthe dismissal of, or the
Govemnment’s agreement to forebear filing or pursuing, certain criminal charges as a part of this
plea agreement, the Defendant is not a "prevailing party" for the purpose of seeking attomeys'

fees under the "Hyde Amendm.enl’," Pub.L.No. 105-119, Section 617 MNov. 26, 1997). The
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Defendant further agrees that as a term of this plen agreemtent, the Defendant hersby waives any
and all claims against the United States forattorneys’ fees under said law,

X,
Reservation of Goyernment's Rights

The Government reserves the right to: (1) bring its version of the facts of this case to the
atlention of the United States Probation Office in connection with that office's preparation of a
presentence report; (2) dispute sentencing factors or facts material to sentencing inthe
presentence report; and (3) seek resolution of such factors or facts in conference with deferise
counsel and the United States Probation Office. All parties reserve full right of allocution as to
the appropriate sentence the Defendant should receive, unless otherwise provided above,

Defendant further understands that the agreement binds only the United States Attomsy’s
Office for thé Western District of Texas and the Defendant. The Defendant aclmowledgeé Tully
understanding that by this plea agreement, no representations or agreements have been made or
entered into with any other United States Attomey orany other federal or state prosecutor
concerning other pending or possible offenses or charges. The writien plea agreement
constitutes the entire agresment between the parties and shall nat be modified except by
agreement iﬁ open court o iﬁ a supplemental plea agreement signed by all the parties,

X,
Tactual Basis for Plea

The Defendant agrees and stipulates as part of this plea agreement tb the

following facts: .
From on or about February 23, 2009, to on or about November 30, 2011, in the Westerm
District of Texas and elsewhere, the Defendants BHAVESH J. SHAH and ANDREA

CHRISTINA ITURRIETA, together with other persons known and unknown intentionally and
5
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knowingly executed and attempted fo execute a scheme and arfifice to defraud a health care
benefit program, namely Medicare and the Texas Medicaid program, and to obtain, by means of
false and fraudulent, pretenses, representations and promises, money or properly owned by, or
under the custody and control of a health care program, namely, Medicare and the Texas
Medicaid program, in connection with the delivery and payme‘nt for health care benefits, items,
and services.
It was part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that, while in service as a Texas
Medicaid and Medicare provider Defendénts BHAVESH J. SHAH and ANDREA CHRISTINA
ITURRIETA corruptly filed and caused to be filed false claims with Medicare and the Texas.
Medicaid program for reimbursement for office visits and physician services, Defeudaﬁts
BHAVESH J. SHAH and ANDREA CHRISTINA ITURRIETA also corruptly billed and caused
10 be billed the Medic;,are and Texas Medicaid program for Durable Medical Equiprﬁent (DME)
which, in truth and in fact, was not provided to Medicare and Medicaid recipients, The corruptly
filed claims and fraudulent bi]}ing generated by Defendants resulted in payments to Deféndant
BHAVESH J. SHAH from Medicare and the Texas Medicaid program which the Defendants
were not entitled to receive.
The Medicare Program is a federally funded health care insurance program funded by the
United States Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services (CMS). Medicare is a health care benefit program. The Medicére Program provides
federal health care insurance benefits to people age sixly-five and older and individuals with
disabilities,.  The Médicarr; program permits health agencies and providers "to receive
reimbursement for reasonable and necessary medical procedures, medical seryices, and medical

supplies provided to Medicare recipients, also known as beneficiaries,
[
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N[SdiGE;TG is divided into two pars, Part A and Part B, Carriers contract to menage the
Part B Medicare program and administer the reimbursements. - In Texas, the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services now conﬁacls with Trailblazer Health Enterprises (Trailblazer) to
administer and pay Medicare claims filed by physicians.

In order fo participate in the Medicare program in Texas, 2 physician must complete,
stgn, and submit a Medicare application to Trailblazer. If .apprm.’ad as a provider, Trailblazer
assigns a provider number to the physician, The provider mumber must be used on all claim
Torms filed with Medicare to identify the supplier of the medical services.

When a physician becomes a Medicare provider, the physician provider (hereinafier
“provider”) is furnished a Medicare Part B Handbook for Physicians and Suppliers. Under the
provider agreement; the provider is requ_ired to become Familiar with, and comply with, all rules
and' regulations in the provider handbook as well as any laws governing Medicare, The
handbook contains a specific section dealing with the billing process, citing examples of how 1o
propetly bill Medicare.

The provider submits olaims for payment fo Trailblazer either in hard copy .or
elecironically. By submitling olaims using the provider’s unique personal identifier mumber, the
provider is certifying that all claims made by the provider are true and accurate, and the .clairned
services were fendered, and were reasonable and medically necessary, The claim form
describes, emong other lhingé, {lie services provided to the patient, the symptoms or diseases
suffered by -the patient, and identifies the medical professional providing the s~ervices. A
provider is required to ensure that'the provider’s employees and agenls are aware of, and comply
with,v all Medicare rules, regulations, and laws, A provider employing, contracting, or otherwise

utilizing a biller or billing service is required to review the aceuracy of all clmims submitied on
7
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behalf of the pl'ovidcg, and to conéct any errors in billing, Trailblazer pays & provider for
submitted claims by automatic deposits and by check issued to the provider.

On all occasions when Trailblazer pays a Medicare claim, a Medicare Summary Notice
(MSN) is sent to the Medicare beneficiary (patient) informing {he beneficiary (patient) of the
service(s) billed by the provider. A Medicare Remiftance Notice is also sent to the provider
indicating the services paid for by Medicare.

The Texas Medicaid program (Medicaid) is a cooperative federal-state propram to
Turnish medical assistance to the iﬁdigen’c. Al{hough funded predominantly by the United States
Govemment, the state administers the Medicaid program. Medicaid helps pay for reasonable
and necessary medical procedures and services provided to individuals who are deemed' eligible
under state Igw—income programs, Texas Medicaid is a health cere benefit program.

In order to parficipate in the Texas Medicaid program, a physician completes, signs, and
submits 2 Texas Medicaid Provider Agreement. If approved as a Medicaid provider, the
physician prm?ider (provi'aer) ig issued a provider number, The provideris subsequently issued &
Provider Manual, The Provider Agreement states that each provider has a; duty to become
familiar with the contents and procedures cortained in the Provider Man;xal as well as all state
and federal laws governing and regulating Médicaid. The provider agrees to camlply with all of
the requirements of the Provider Manual and state and federal laws. The provider is responstble
for ensuring that employees or agents acting on behalf of the provider are aware of, and comply
with, all the reqﬁiremani’s of the Provider Manuail end all laws governing and regulating
Medicaid. A provi'dAer employing, coniracting, or otherwise wiilizing a biller or billing service is
required to review the accuracy of all claims ‘submitted on behalf of the provider, and to correct

any errors in billing,
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Texas Medicaid contracts with the Texas M.edioaia and Healiheare Partnership (TMHP)
to process and pay claims. A provider may submit Medicaid claims to TMHP etectronically or
in hard copy. By submitﬁng or causing claims to be submitied under the provider's unique
personal identification number, the physician is cerlifying that the services were provided and
were medically necessary, TMHP pays Medicaid olaims submitted by providers by automatic
deposits and by checks issued to the provider.

In Texas, both Medicaid and Medicare provide reimbursement for certain medically
necessary podialtic services. Reimbursable podiatric services include mycotic nail debridement
billed under Current Procedural Terminology (CPT)‘ codes 11721 (six or more toenails) and
11720 (less than six toenails). In order tg be reimbursable under Medicare and Medicaid, a
physician must perform certain rﬁedical steps and follow strict documentation tequirements. The
nmﬁber and frequency of debridements is limited by utilization gl;lidelines. CPT codes 11721

>and 11720 are frequently used to perpetuate health care fraud. Tor this reason, Medicare and
Medicaid routinely perform audits to identify providers who file high volume ¢laims using these
- codes, ) )

A podiatrist provider can bill for face-to-face office visits with Medicaid patient
recipients -using- CPT code 99213, To be IBimbUI‘S';lble under this code, an office visit must
include fifteen minutes of face-lo-face time with a patient and meet medical decision meking,
.history, and treaiment level requirements. Mycotic debridements alone will not justify
reimbursement under CPT code 99213. Reimbursement for CPT code 99213 is higher ﬁla.n
reimbursement under CPT codes 11721 or 11720, Providers are able to avoid Medicare and
Medicaid andils of CPT codes 11721 and 11720 and fraud identification by inappropriately

bitling debridements as office visits using CPT code 99213,
: 9
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Medicare and Médicaid will also pay for medically necas.smy Durable Medical
Bquipment (DME) to include therapeutic shoes and inserts for patients with diabetes who qualify
under Medicare and Medicaid rules, | Providers musi create and maintain appropriale
documeniation supporﬁhg the medical necessity of the DME, .Providers bill Medicars and
Medicaid for diabetic therapeutic shoes and inserts under CPT codes A5500, A5512, and A5513.
Customn molded shoes and therapéutio inserts billed under these codes require, among other
things, that the inseris be “direct mold inserts.” Direct molding means that the insert has been
conformed by molding the insert directly to match the planar surface of the individual patient’s
foot. Molding is accomplished by heating the inserts and molding them to the patients’ feet.
“Compression molding” in which inserts are molded over time by the weight and heat of a
patient’s feet by wearing the inserts over a period of time are not covered by Medicare and
Medicaid, Medicare and Medicaid will pay for one pair of custom molded shoes and three
custom molded inserts for a Medicaid and Medicare recipient within a calendar year.

At all times pertinent to the Information, Defendant BHAVESH J. S_HAH was a licensed
podiatrist owning and operating multiple podiatry clinics in Sén Amtonio and throughout Texas
dba Soufh Texas Foo(t Institute, A

On or about August 1, 2003, Defendant BHAVESH J. SHAH dba South Texas Foot
Insitimte became an authorized Medicare provider and was assigned Medicare National Provider
Iden(iﬁcal‘ion. number 1710176243, On or about November 5, 2003, SHAH, dba Soulh Texas
Foot Institute, became an awthorized Medicaid provider and was assigned Texas Provider
Identification Number 1609950-01, These group provider nuntbers allowed SHAH, dba South

Texas Foot Institute, to submit and receive payment for services provided by SHAH and other

10
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providers employed by or contracted with South Texas Foot Ingh’lute to provide podiatr‘y services
to South Texas Foot Institule palients.

From approximately March 2009 through Novambe,.r 2011, Defendant ANDREA
CHRISTINA ITURRIETA was employed by SHAT at the South Texas Foot hﬁliiﬂe as a biller,
In this capacity, Defendant ITURRIETA was responsible for submitling claims to Insurance
providers to include Medicare and Medicaid for services and equipment provided by South
Texas Foot Institute medical providers.

While operating his clinics thronghout Texas, SHAH created an artifice and scheme fo
defrand o.r obtain money from the Texas Medicaid and Medicare programs using false and
fraudulent pretenses and reﬁresentations. He intentionally gnd knowingly directed Defendant
ITURRIETA and others to falsely bill Medicaid and Medicare using codes whi.ch were not
justified by the procedures performed, and which tesulted in greater reimbursement from
~ Medicare and Medicaid. ITURRIETA routinely billed Medicare and Medicaid for office visits
using CPT billing 99213 for mycotic debridements services which did not qualify as office visits
reimbursable under CPT code 99213. Defendant ITURRIETA also knowingly and intentionally
billed a wart removal, then reimbursable &t approximately $82.00, as removal of a foreign body
resulting in reimbursemer;t of approximately $362.00,

In order to conceal the fraudulent activity, Defendant ITURRIETA altered pzﬁient
medijcal files and pro.vider billing records and documents of employed and contracted medical
providers to reflect that more extensive services were performed than the services actually

provided to the patients.
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As o result of the fraudulent practice of tl)illing for more extensive services than those
provided lo patients, Defendants SHAH and ITURRIETA billed Medicare and Medicaid
$189,964.40 and was paid by Medicare and Medicaid $83,754.45.

Defendants SHAH and JTURRIETA also engaged in a scheme and artifice 1o defrand
Medicaid and Medicare by billing for DME diabetic therapeutic shoes and inserts which were -
not provided to patients, and for inserts and shoes that were not molded to patients feet and
therefore not reimbursable by Medicare or Medicaid. Defendants. SHAH directed Defendant
TTURRIETA 1o bill Medicare and Medicaid for three pairs (six individual) customized insérts
but only provided patients one pair of inserts. Shoes and inserts that were provided to patients
were never direct molded to patients’ feet as required by Medicare and Medicaid. As a result of
this fraudulent schemne, Defendants SHAH and ITURRIETA billed Medicare $101,144.40 and
Ivfedicaid $48,813.60 and were paid $47,046.42 and $5,636.45 respectively, monies to which the
Defendants were not enfitled to receive.

On April 23, 2012, Defendant BHAVESH J. SHAH was interviewed by fraud

~ investigators. Defendant SHAH admitted that from 2008 forward, he engaged m a practice of
billin.g Medicare and Mgdicaid for greater services and more DME than he was aciually
providing to patients, He admitted that he directed his staffto provide only one set of therapeutic
inserts and directed his biﬂ;ar to submit claims to Medicare and Medicaid for three pairs of
inserts. Defendant SHAH also admitted that when his contracted and employed medical
providers submitted claims for mycolic debridements unld'er CPT. code 11721, he diyected
Defendant ITURRIETA to change claim submissions to CPT code 99213 becauég CPT code

99213 paid more. Defendant SHAH admilted that he knew the services performed vere

12
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debridements and that he knew changing the billing code was wrong. SHAHM reviewed claims
documents and admitted that the billings were false and not justified by the services rendered.
Defendant ANDREA CHRISTINA ITURRIETA was inlerviewed by fraud investi gators
on April 23, 2012, During this interview, Defendant ITURRIETA admitled that she was the
biller for the South Texas Foot Instifute from March 2009 through November 2011. She
admitted that she billed for more diabetic (herapeutic inserts than what she ordered, She .
admitted that she changed codes submitted by doctors from debridement under CPT 11721 to
office visits using CPT 99213, She admitled that she did {his becanse reimbursement would be
higher, and it would involve less paperwork, Defendant ITURRIETA reviewed olaixr'xs
documents and admitted that the doouments reflected the false claims that she filed with
Medicare and Medicaid and the docurnents that she altered to conceal the false billing.
Palients and employees interviewed confirmed that services billed to Medicare and
Medicaid were not the services provided, Patients and employees also verified that mul’uple
»mseﬂs were not provided to patients and that the inserts provzded were not heated or direct
molded as required by Medicare and Medicaid. ‘Employees alsq verified that Defendant SHAH
instructed them to bill aebn'dements under CPT code 99213.
Moreover, as alleged in Count One of (he Information, and Throuéh the Manner and
Means of the Information, the Defendants BHAVESH . éHAH and ANDREA CHRISTINA
ITURREITA comrmﬂed Health Care Fraud by billing for services not rendered.
Between on or about April 25, 2011, and on or aboul Iune 27, 2011, the Defendants
‘billed and caused to be billed to Medicaid and Medjcare for two office visits in the amount
- totaling $290,00 using billirfg CPT Code 99213 for patient C.G., which services, in truth and in

fact, were not rendered es services consisled only of mycolic nail debridements. As a result of
13
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fhe Defendanl’s fraudulent act, Medicare issued payment in the amount of $107.04 and Medicaid
issued payment in the amount of $26,76 for the frandulent claims,

As alleged in Count Two of the Information, and through the Manner and Means of the
fxr[’ormaﬁon, the Defendants BHAVESH J. SHAH and ANDREA CHRISTINA ITURREITA
committed Health ‘Care Fraud by billing for services not rendered,

On or-about May 12, 2011, the Defendants billed and caused to be billed to Medicaid and
Medicare three pairs of direct molded diabetic therapeutic inserts in the amount of $300.00 using
billing CPT Code A5512 for patient D.T., which DME, in truth and in fact, was not provided as
only one pair of non-molded inserts not meeting Medicare or Medicaid coverage requiren‘;ents
were provided to D.T. As a result of the Defendant’s fraundulent aét, Medicare issued payment in
the amount of $130.61 and Medicaid issued payment in the amount of $32.65 for the frandulent
claim,

XTI,
Breach of Plea Agreement

All promises made here by each party are made dependent on full performance of the
promises made by the other party. Any promise regarding the .Gov‘ermnent’s sentencing
recommendgtion, if any applies only to the sentencing upon fhis information and does not apply,
for e.,\:ample, to any fiture proceedings relating to an alleged violation of probation, a violation of
parole, or a viol ation of supervised release. If the Defendant, BHAVESH J. SHAH, commits any
crimes, ‘violates any of the condilions of release, of’violates any term of this agreement between
Siﬁng‘ this agreementf and the date of sentencing, of fails to appear for sentencing, or if the
Defendant provides information to the prc;baiion ofﬁq‘er, the United States, or the Court which is

foal

intentionally misleading or intentionally untruthful, the United States will be free to recomunend

14
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at sentencing on the charges to which ﬂue_defendant has pleaded puilly, a sentence‘lgi_gl_lg_x; than
that contermnplated by this agreement. If {he Government pursues this course, the defendant will
not be free to withdraw this guilty plea entered pursuant to this plea agreement. Furthermore, in
such instance, the Govemment will be free 1o charge, reinstate, or otherwise pursue any and all
charges which could have been brought bul for this plea agreement,

XL
Duty of Financial Candor

Thé Defendant, BHAVESH J. SHAH, agrees that a complete and truthful disclosure shall
be made to the U.S. Probation Office regarding every aspect of the Defendant’s financial
condition, Farlure to truthﬁllly.and completely disclose all financial information as required by
the Probation bfﬁcer may result in the Court's rejbect’lon of the plea of guilty; refusal of the
Govemmen] 1o recommend to 1he Court a third level for acceptance of -responsibility; a
recommendation by the government for a two level. enhancement in the gui_deline level for
obstruction of justice; and/or ﬁrosecu’dom for affirmative false statements or false staterr;;ﬁté by
omissip%;- to & member of the judicial branch of the U,S. govemment, Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1001, If the Government pursues prosecution the Defendant will not be free to

“withdraw this plea of guilly entered pursuant to this plea agreement.

. Further, the Defendant aclu;OWIedges and agrees that the Defendant may hot engage in
any financial {ransactions, including, but not limited to transfers of funds to and from financial
accounts; making or accepling advance payments; or buying or selling securities or real or
personal property 'without the consent of the Court, However, the Defendant may engage in

rouline transactions such as the necessary payment of monfhly debt and expenses relating to

i5
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employment withou! the prior conseni of the court. Violations of this condition will be-

considered a breach of the Plea Agreement which may result in the same consequences as those

inthe preceding paragraph with the exception of prosecution.
Respectfully submitted,

ROBERT PITMAN
UN

. [TED STATES ATTO Y .
. . ‘ /;‘,/ ,
! ’4/’ <~ a& /<
DATE; /4@ .)2 / 2012 By: r “."‘L‘\-f»"’j { .

[ ' KIMBBRLY JOTNSON

Special Assigtan U.§7 Attomey

DATE: 2012 ' By: i —
MARGARET FEUILLE LEACHMAN

Assistant U.S. Atfomey

DATE Ay Y 2012 | ‘- ' @ /f/

JOE A(PINX

Atlomey for Defendant

I HAVE READ (OR HAD READ TO ME) THE ABOVE PLEA AGREEMENT IN
ITS ENTIRETY AND AGREE TO THE TERMS SET FORTH INIT. ADDITIONALLY,
IHAVE READ (OR HAD READ TO ME) THE FACTUAL BASIS CONTAINED
HEREIN AND AGREE TO THE FACTS SET FORTH IN THE FACTUAL BASIS.

DATE: "ng/‘/ 2012 - | %/Zw ‘

BHAVESH J. SHAH
Defendant

16
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 205 4y
WESTERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS 2|

v SAN ANTONIO DIVISION
. P ol
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, § SAU%L%) CWW’%L
Plaintiff, INFORMATION
§
VS, § [onlatlons: 18U.S.C. § 1347,
§  Health Care Fraud, Counts 1 &2.] .
BHAVESH J. SHAH, (1), § :
§
AND §
. §
ANDREA CHRISTINA ITURRIETA, (2), §
§
" Defendants, §

THE UNITED STATES ATTORNEY CHARGES:

A HEALTH CARE FRAUD SCHEME
[18 U.S.C. Section 1347]

A. INTRODUCTION

At all times material to this Information within tﬁe Western District of Texas, and_

elsewhere!

The Medicare Program

The Medicare Program is & federally funded health care insuranoe‘pr'ogram funded by the
United States Deggrtmenf of Health and Human Services, Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Servicés (CMS), Medicare is a health care benefit program, The M:czdicat’e Program provides
federal health care insurance benefits to people age sixty-five and older and indiw}iduals with
disabilities.  The Medicare program permits health agcncies and providers to receive

reimbursement for reasonable and necessary medical pIOGCdUICS medical ser VlGBS and medical

ortify,
true copy of the original, I certily,
. 16110erkp ! &, Distadet Court

@UU\@ WW/(!AL(/

Dap\lw
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sxlppligs px'ovidc"czi':'to MediAoarc recipients, also known as beneficiaries,

Medicare is divided into two parts, Part A end Part B, Carriers contract io manage the
Par.‘t B Medicare progiam and administer the rejmbursements. In Texas, the U.S, Department of
Health and Human Services now contracts with Trailblazer Health Enterprises (Trailblazer) to
. administer and pay Medicare claims filed by physicians, |

In order-to participate in the Medicare program in Texas, a physician must complete,
sign, and submit a Medicare application to Trailblazer.' If approved as a provider, Trailblazer
assigns a provider number to the physician, The provider number must be used on all claim
forms filed with ,&edioare to identify the supplier of the medical services,

When a physician becomes a Medicare provider, the physician provider {hereinaﬁer
“provider”) is furnished a Medicare Part B Handbook for Physicians and Suppliers, Under the
_provider agreemeht, the provider is required to become familiar with, and comply with, all rules
and regulations m the provider handbook as well as any laws governing Medicare, The
handbook contains a specific section dealing with the billing ﬁrooess, éiting examples of how {0
properly bill Medicare,

The proy}_der submits claims for payment to Trailblazer either in hard copy or
electronically, B.y submitting claims using the provider’s ﬁnique personal identifier number, the
provider is certifying that all claims made by the provider are tre and accurate, and the claimed.
services were rendered, and were reasonable and medically necessary, The claim form
describes, among other things, the services provided. to the patient, the symptoms or diseases
suffered by the patient, and identifies the medical profeséiona] providing the services, A
provider is required to ensure that the provider’s employees and agents are aware of, and comply

with, all Medicare rules, regulations, and laws, A provider employing, contracting, or otherwise
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utilizing a biller or billing service is required to review the accuracy of all claims submitted on
.behalf' of the provider, and lo correct any errors in billing. Trailblazer pays a provider for
submitted claims by automatic deposits and by check issued to the provider,
On all occasions when Trailblazer pays a Medicare claim, a Medicare Summary Notice
(MSN) ig sent to the Medicare beneficiary (patient) informing the beneficiary (patient) of the
service(s) billed by the provider, A Medicare Remittance Notice is also sent to the provider
indicating the sefﬁ%:f:ices paid for by Medicare,

The Texas Medicaid Program

The Texas Medicaid program .(Medicaid) is a cooperative federal-state program to
furnish medical assistance to the indigent, Although funded predominantly by the United States
Government, thes‘r;tate administers the Medicaid program, Medicaid helps pay for reasonable
and necessary medical procedures and services pfovided to individuals who are deemed eligible
‘under state low-income programs, Texas Medic‘éid is g health care benefit program.

In order to participate in the Texas Medicaid program, a physician completes, signs, and
submits a Texaslf.Medicaid Provider Agreement, If approved as a .M'edioaid provider, the
ﬁhy_sician provider (provider) is issued a provider number, The provider is subsequently issued a
Provider Manual. The Provider Agreement states that each provider has a duty to become
familiar with the contents and procedures contained in the Provider Manual as well as all state
and federal laws govemmg and regulating Medicaid. The provider agrees to comply with all of
the requirements of the PIOVldGl Mantual and state and federal laws. The pmwdex is responsxble
for ensuring that gxnployees or agents acting on behalf of the provider are aware of, and comply
with, all the requirements of the Provider Manual and all laws governing and regulating

BN

Medicaid, A provider employing, coniracting, or otherwise utilizing a biller or billing service is
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required to review the accuracy of all claims submitted on behalf of the prévider, and 1o correct
any errors in billifig,

Texas Medicaid contracts with the Texas Medicaid and Healthcare Parinership (TMHP)
to process and-pay claims, A provider may submit Medicaid c]airﬁs to TMHP electronically or
in hard copy. By submitting or causing claims to be submitied under the proyider’s unique
personal identiﬁ&ition number, the physician is certifying that the services were provided and
“were medically necessary, TMHP pays Medicaid claims submitted by providers by automatic
deposits and by checks issued to the provider.

Podiatric Services

In Texas,ﬁ both Medicaid and Medicare provide reimbursement for certain medically

necessary podiatric services, Reimbursable podiatric services include mycotic nail debridement

" hilled under Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) codes 11721 (six or m01€focnaxfs) anid
11720 (less than six toenails). In order to be reimbursable under Medicare and Mefiiéaid, 8
physician must pz;fonn certain medical step.s and follow strict documentation requirements, The
number and ‘frequency of debridements is limited by utilization guidelilles. CPT codes 11721

and 11720 ére,frequent]y used to perpetvate health care fraud, For this reason, Medicare and

Medicaid routinely perform audits to identify providers -who file high volume claims using these

TPy

codes,

A podiatrist provider can bill for face—to—féce office visits with Medicaid patient
' recipients using CPT code 99213, To be reimbursable under this code, an office visit must
inolgde fifteen minxltes of face-to-face time with a patient and meet medical decision making,‘

history, and treatment level requirements. Mycotic debridements alone will not justify

‘reimbursement under CPT code 99213, Reimbursement for CPT code 99213 is higher than



|

Case 5:12-cr-00792-FB  Document 1 Filed 08/21/12 Page 5 of 10

reimbursement under CPT codes 11721 or 11720, Providers al'e'éble to avoid Medicare and
Medicaid audits of CPT codes 11721 and 11720 and fraud identification by inappropriately
billing debridemints as office visits using CPT code 99213, |

Medicarewand Medicaid will also pay for medically necessary Durable Medical
Equipment (DME) to include therapeutic shoes and inserts for patients with diabetes who qualify
under Medicare and Medicaid tules. Providers must create and maintain appropriate

- documentation supportmg the medical necessity of the DME, Providers bill Medicare and

Medicaid for diabetic thmapeutlc shoes and inserts under CPT codes A5500, A5512, and A5513
Custom molded shoes and therapeutic inserts billed L.mc.ler these codes require, among other
things, that the inserts be “direct mold inserts,” Direct molding means that the insert .has been
conformed by moldmg the insert directly to match the plantar surface of the individual patient’s
foot. Malding is accomplished by heating the mserts and moldmg them to the patients’ feet,
“Compression molding” in which inserts are molded over time by the weight and heat of a
patient’s feet by wearing the inserts over a period of time‘ are not covered by Medicare and
Medicaid, Medicare and Medicaid will pay for one pair of custom molded shoes and three
custom molded inserts for a Medicaid and Medicare recipient within a calendar year.

At all times pertinent to the Information, Defendant BHAVESH I, SHAH was a licensed
podiatrist owning and operating multiple podiatry clinics in San Antonio and throu'ghout Texas -
dba South Texas Foot Institute,

Defendants BHAVESH J. SHAH and ANDREA C, JTURRITA

At all times pertinent to this Information, Defendant BHAVESH J.-SHAH was a licensed
podiatrist operatin'g South Texas Foot Institute in San Antonio and elsewhere througho.ut Texas,

On or abdut August 1, 2003, Defendant BHAVESH J. SHAH dba South Texas Foot
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Institute became an authorized Medicare provider and was assigned Medicare National Provider
Identification ni\_{pber 1710176243, On or about November 5, 2003, SHAH, dba South Texas
Foot Institute became an authorized Medicaid provider and was assigned Texas Provider
Identification number 1609950-01, These group provider nunﬁbers allowed SHAH, dba South
Texas Foot. Institute to sub'mit and receive paym.ent for services provided by SHAH and other
providers employed by or contraqted with South Texas Foot Instituté to provide podiatry services
to South Texas Foot Institute patients,

- From approximately March 2009 thiough November 2011, Defendant ANDREA
CHRISTINA ITURRIETA was employed by SHAH at the South Texas Foot Institute as a biller,
In this capacity,*Defendant ITURRIETA was responsible for submitting claims to insurance
providers to inc.]ude Medicare and Medicaid for services and equipment prqvided by South

Texas Foot Institute medical providers.

At all times pertinent to ‘this Information, Defendants SHAH and ITURRITA billed
Medicaid and Médicare for podiatric services and durable rneaica] equipment that in truth and in

fact, were not provided,

B, THE SCHEME AND ARTIFICE TO DEFRAUD

1. From on or about February 23, 2009, to on or about November 30, 2011, in the
Western District 0T Texas and élse'vvhera, the Defendants, |
BHAVESH J. SHAH,
and
ANDREA C, ITURRIETA,
together with oth;"é'r persons, b.oi'h known and unknown, knowingly and willfully exeoutgzd and

attempted to execute a scheme and artifice to deftaud a health care benefit program, namely

]
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e

Medicare and the Texas Medicaid Program, and to obtain, by means of false and fraudulent,
pretenses, representations and promises, money .or propeﬂ); owned by, or under the custody and
control of a health care program, namely, Medicare and the Texas Medicaid Proéx‘am, in
connection with the delivery andhpayment for health care benefits, items, and services.

RE2

C, MANNER AND MEANS OF THE SCHEME AND ARTIFICE TO DEFRAUD

It was part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that, while in service as a Texas
.Medicaid and Medicare provider: ‘

1. Defenlglant BHAVISH J. SHAH would and did fraudulently instruct Defendant
ANDREA CHRIESTINA ITURRIETA and others to file claims with Medicare and the Texas
Medic.aid Program for reimbursement :,for durable medical equipment which were, in truth and in
fact, not provided to 'éati ents. ‘ |

2. Defeng.ant ANDREA CHRISTINA ITURRIETA knowingly and intentionally filed

claims for feimbursemen‘t from Medicare and the Texas Medicaid Program for diabetic
' therapeutic inserts that were neither ordered for nor provided to patients,

3, Defendaﬁt BHAVISH J, SHAH would and did fraudulently instruct Defendant
ANDREA CHRISTINA ‘ITURRJE'.FA and others to file claims with Medicare and the Texas
Medicaid Program utilizing billing codes (CPT) that falsely and fraudulently represented to
Medicare and Medicaid that more expensive procedures were performed for .patients than those
actually provided to patients. - |

4. Defendant ITURRIETA did, in truth and in fact, knowingly and intentionally filed

claims using incorrect CPT codes for the purpose of increasing reimbursement from Medicare

and Medicaid,
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5. The corruptly filed claims and fraudulent billing generated by Defendant SHAH
and Defendant ITURRIETA resulted in payment from Medicare and the Texas Medicaid
Program to Defeiidant SHAH which monies the Defendants were nét entitled to receive.

6. From on or about February 23, 20(59,' fo on or about November 2011, the
Defendants ﬁ;audulently billed Medicare and Medicai'd $189,964.40 and were paid $83,754.45
for services and durable medical equipment that were not érovided.

D. THE EXECUTION OF THE SCHEME AND ARTIFICE TO DEFRAUD

COUNTS ONE
[18 U.S.C. §1347]

1. Sections A, B, and C of this Information are hereby incorporated and re-alleged

herein, .
it

2. For the purpose of executing the aforementioned scheme -and artifice to defraud
and aitempting to do so, in the Western District of Texas, between April 25, 2011, and on or-

abouﬁ June 27, 2011, the Defendants,

BHAVESH J. SHAH

ey

and
’ ANDREA C, ITURRIETA
knowingly and intentionally executed the Scheme and Artifice to Defraud by submitting and
causing to be submitted false and fraudulent claims in the amount. of $290.00 to the Texas
Medicare and Medicaic_l Programs for patient C.G,, Ausing CPT code 99213 for services and
benefits purported to be provided to C.G. which services and benefits were, in truth and in fact,
not provided, résulting in a Medicare payment in the amount of $107.04 and Medicaid payment

in the amount ofi$26.76 to Defendant SHAH, and to which the Defendants were not entitled to

receive,

~
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All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1347,

' COUNT TWO
[18 U.S.C. §1347]
1. Sections A, B, and C of this Infohnation are hereby incorporated and re-alleged
herein,
2. F(;l the purpose of executing tbe aforementioned scheme and aﬂiﬁo;a to defraud

and atternpting to.do so, in the Western District of Texas, on or about May 12, 2011, the
Defendants,

BHAVESH J. SHAH

and
ANDREA C. ITURRIETA
knowingly and willfully executéd the S‘cheme and Artifice to Defraud by submitting and causing
to be submitted a;_f.alse and fraudulent claim in the amount of $300.00 to the T'exas Medicare and
Medicaid Prog.rarr!is for paﬁeﬁ_t D.T, for diﬁbe‘cic therapeutic shoe inserts using CPT code A5512
which services and benefits purported to be provided to D.T, were, in truth‘and in fact, not
provided, resulting in a Medicare payment in the amount of $130.61 and Medicaid payment in

the amount of $32.65 to' Defendant SHAH, and to which the Defendants were not entitled to

r'eceive,
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All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1347,
Respectfully submitted,

ROBERT PITMAN
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

By:

T ERLY M. JOHNSON :
Special Assistant United States Attorney
Texas State Bar No, 24063920 '

601 N.W. Loop 410, Suite 600
' San Antonio, Texas 78216
Tel: (210)384-7150
Fax: (210)384-7118

By, /™o 22—
MARGARET F. LEACHMA:
Assistant United States Attorney
Texas State Bar No, 12069700
601 N.W. Loop 410, Suite 600
San Antonio, Texas 78216

- Tel; (210) 384-7150
Fax: (210)384-7118
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AD 245 B (Rev. 06/05MW.D.TX.) - Judament In & Griminel Case

| JAN -
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT AN 6201
Western District of Texas WESTLRN B
SAN ANTONIO DIVISION BY
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA |
V.. _ Case Number  8A-J2-CR-792(01) F

USM Number  03650-380

BHAVESH J. BHAH, TRUE NAME: BHAVESH JAGDISH SHAH,
Alias: Bhavesh J, Shah, .

Defendant,
JUDGMENT IN'A CRIMINAL CASE
(For Offenses Committed On or After November 1, 1987}

The defendant, BHAVESH J. SHAH, TRUE NAME: BHAVESH JAGDISH SHAH, Alias: BhavashJ Shah, was
represented by, Mr, Joe A, Pina, Esqmre

The defendant pled gulity to Count(s) One (1) and Twe (2) of the Information on September 20, 2012, Accordlngly. the
defendanl is adjudged guifly of such Count(s ) Involving the following offense(s):

Title & Section Nalure of Offense . . Offense Ended —
18 USC § 1347 Health Care Fraud : June 27, 2011 One
18 USG § 1347 Health Care Fratd '  Mayi2, 2011  Two

As pronounced on December 21, 2012, the defendant is sentenced as provided In pages 2 through 6 of thls Judgment.
The sentence is imposed pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Acl of 1984,

Itis further ordered thal the defendant shall nolify the United States Atiorney for this district within 30 days of any
change of name, residence, ‘or mailing address until'all fines, restitution, costs, and special assessments imposed by this

Judgment are fully paid. If ordered lo pay restitution, the defendant shal} notify the Gourt and United States Attorney of any
material change in the defendant's economic clrcumstances, -
: L

) éigned this lhe ﬁ day of January, 2013,

e

FRED Bl

CHIEF UNITEW S.DISTR!CT JUDGE

Atrue copy of the orlglnal Icemfy
Clerk, U.8, District Court

] . )
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PROBATION

The defendant is hereby placed on probat!on fora term of FIVE (5) YEARS on Gounls One() and:Two {2) ld-be
served concurrently,

While on probation, the defendant shall comply with the mandatory, standard and if applicable, the speclal conditions
that have been adopted by this Court.

X The defendant shall nol be required to undergo mandalory drug iesting,
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Defendant: BHAVESH J, BHAH (see page 1)
Case Number, SA-12-CR-782(01) FB

CONDITIONS OF PROBATION
Mandatory Condltions:

1) The defendant shali nal commil another federal, stale, or local crime during the ferm of supervision,
2)  The defendant shall not unlawfully possess a controlled substance, '

3)  The defendant shall refrain from any unlawful use of a confrolled subsiance. The defendant shall submlt 1o one drug test within
15 days of release on probalion or supervised release and al least iwo perlodic drug tesls lhereafter (as delermined by the court)
for use of a controlied substance, bul the condllion staled in this paragraph may be amellorated or suspended by, the cou if.the
gegengan( 6 presentence report or other reliable senlencing informalion indicales low risk of fulure substance dbuse by the -

afendanl,

4y In supervised release cases Dnly, the defendan! musl report {o the probation office in the district {o which the defendanl Is
released within 72 hours of reiease from custody of the Bureau of Prisons,

6)  [fconvicted of a felony, the defendanl shall not possess a firsamm, ammunltmn. destructive device, or any other dangerous
weapon,

6) The defendant shall cooperéte Inthe collection of DNA ss direcled by the proballon officer, if the collection of such & éample Is
authorized pursuant to section 3 of the, DNA Analysis Backlog Efimination Act of 2000 (42 U.S.C. § 14135a). .

7) i convicted of a sexual offense and required o reglster under the Sex Offender and Reglstration Act, that the dE{e“dB"t comply
with the requirements of the Acl, :

8)  Ifconvicted of a domestic violence crime as deﬂned In 18 U.5.C. § 3561(h), the defendant shall participalg In an apprDVBd
program for dnrneshc vlolence

9)  Ifthe judgment imposes afine or restitution, it Is a condition of supervision thal the defendant pay In accordance with tha
8chedule of Payments sheet of the Judgment.

éwngard Conditions:

1) The defendanl shall not leave the judiclal dlstrict without permission of the court or probatior\ ofﬁcer..

2) The defsndaﬁl st;all report {o the probation officer in a manner and frequency direcled by the court or probalion officer.

3) The defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the prabation officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer.”

4)  The defendant shell support his or her dependents and meet olher family obligations, and shali comply with the terms of any court
order.or order of an administralive process requiring payments by the defendant for the support and malntenance of a chiid or of a
child and the parent with whom the chlld is living.

5)  The defendant shal work regularly at a lawful occupanon, unless excused by the probatlon officer for schooling, trﬂinmg. or other -
acceplable reasons,

B) ThE defendant shall nolify the prabation officer at least ten days prior to any change in residence or employmant.

7) The delendan! shall refraln from excessive use of alcohol and shall not purchass, possess, use, disiribute, or adminlster any
conlrolled substance or any paraphernalia related to any controlled substances, excepl as prescnbed by a physlclan,

8)  The defendant shall not frequent places where controlled subslances are Hlegally sold, used, distrlbuted, or adminislered.

§)  The defendant shall nol associale with any persons engaged in criminal activity and shall not associate W|th any person convicled.
of a felony, unless granled permission to do so by the probalion officer, . T reon e W'

10) The defendant shall permit & probatlon officer to visit him or her al any lime, at home or elsewhere and shall permll conrscalron
of any conlraband observed In plain view of the probation officer,

11) The defendant shall notify Ihe probation officer within sevenly-iwo hours of being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement
officer.
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12)

13)

14)

15)

16)
17)

"13)

19)

20)
21)

22)

The dafendanl shall nol enter Into any agreemérit lo acl as-an informer of specual agent of a law anforcement agency without the
parmlssion of the courl,

As directed by the probation officer, the defendan! shall notify third parties of risks thal my be occeslpned by the defendant's
criminal record or personal history or characteristics, and shall permil the probation officer to make such holifications; and to
confirm the defendanl's compliance with such notlfcatmn requirement.

Il convicled of a sex offense as described in the Sex Offender Reglstration and Nolification Act or has a prior conviction of a State
or local offense that would have been an offense as described In the Sex Offender Registration and Nolification Act if a
clroumslance giving rise lo federal jurlsdiction had existed, the defendant shall parlicipale in a sex offender treatment program
approved by the probation officer. The defendant shall abide by all program rules, requirements and conditions of the sex
offender ireaiment program, including submisslon lo polygraph tesling, io determine if the defendant is in compliance wlih the-
condilions of release. The defendant may be required o conlribule ta the cost of the sevices rendered {copayment) in an amount
fo be determined by the probation officer, based on the defendant's abliity to pay.

The defandant shall submit {o an evaluation for substance abuse or depsndency treatment as dtrecled by the probatlon officer,
and If deemed necessary by the probation officer, the defendant shall participate in @ program approved by the probation officer
for treatment of narcolic addiction or drug or alcohol dependency which may include tesling and examination to dstermine if the
defendant has reverled to the use of drugs or alcohol. During treatment, the defendant shall abstain from the use of‘alcohol and
any and all intoxicanls, The defendant may be required to contribute lo the cos! of the services rendered (copayment) In an
amount to be determined by the probation officer, based upon the defendant's abillty to pay,

The defendant shall submit to an evaluation for mental health counseling as direcied by lhe probation officer, and if deemed
nacessary by the probation officer, the defendant shall participate in a mental health program approved by the probation officer.
The defendani may be required to contribute to the cost of the services rendered (copayment) inan amount to be determmed by
the probation officer, based upon the defendant's abllity to pay . . . R .

The deferidant shall participate In a cognitive behavxorat treatment program as directed by the probatlon officer, and if deemed
necessary by the probation officer, Such program may include group sessions led by a counselor or participation In a pragram
administered by the probation office. The defendani may be required to contribule {o the cost of the services rendered
(copayment) in an amount to be determined by the probation officer, based upon the defendant's ability to pay,

The defendant shall participate in warkforce development programs and services as direcled by the probation officer, and if -
deemed necessary by the probation officer, which Include occupalional/career development, including but nol limiled to
assessment and tesling, education, instruction, tralning classes, career guidance, job search and relentlon services until
successfully discharged from the program. The defendant may be required to contribute 1o the cost of the services rendered

. (CDPBYment) in-an-amount-to be delermined by the probation, officer, based upon the defendant’s ability {o pay.

I the defendant is excluded, deporled, or remnved upon retease on probation or superwsed release, the term of supeyvision shall
be a non-reparting term of probation or supervised release, The defendant shall not iltegally reenler the United Stales, if the
defendant lawfully reenlers the Unlted Stales during the'term of probatmn or supervised release, the defendant shall Immadiatsly
report In person fo the nearest U,S, Probation Office,

If the Judgment Imposes other criminal monetary penalties, it is a condlion of supervlsibn that the defendant pay such penalies in
accnrdance with the Schedule of Payments sheet of the judgment,

If the judgment [mposes = fine, speciel assessment, restilution, or other criminal monetary penallies, it is-a condilion _Of )

. supenvision that the defendant shall provide the proballon officer access lo any requested figancial informalion.

I+the judgmenl imposes a fine, spaclal assessment, restitution, or olher criminal monetary penallies, it is a cond(tlon of
supervision that the defendant shall not incur any new cradit charges or open addilional lines of credit wﬂhout the approval of the
probation officer, upless the defendant Is in compliance with the payment schedule,




Case 5:12-c~00792-FB  Document 36 Filed 01/09/13 Page 5 of 6

AO 245 B (Rev. 05/04)(W.D,TX.) - Supervised Release

Judgmenl--Page &

Defendent; BHAVESH J, SHAH (see page 1)
Case Number: SA-12-CR-782(01) FB

ThalCoLIJrl further adopis such of the foliowing special condilions applled lo the supervised person by the judge af he time of .
senlencing:,

1)

Community Cenfinement: The defendant shall reside In a Communily Corractions Cenler for a period of months lo -
commenca on . Further, once employed, the dafendanl shall pay 25% of his/her weekly gross Income for hls/her

subsislence as long as that amount does not exceed Lhe 'deily contracl rale, :

Location Monitorlng Program:

Radio Frequency Monitoring: The defendant shall participale in the Localion Monltoring Program with-Radlo Frequency
Monlloring for a period of days/months. You shall abide by the rules and regulations of the Pariicipant Agreement Form.
During this lime, you will remain al your place of residence excepl for employment and other activitles approved in advance by
your probation officer. You will maintain a lelephone at your place of residence withoul "caller 1D,* “call forwarding,” “call waiting,”
“call back/call block,* a modem or a portable cordless telephone for the above perind as directed by the probalion officer. You will
wear an electronlc monitoring device and Tollow location monitoring procedures specified by your probation officer, You shall pay
all or part of the cosls of the program based on the ability to pay as directed by the probalion officer.

3)

4)

5)

Global Positioning Satellite (GPS): The defendani shall parlicipate in the Locatlon Monltoring Program for & term not to excead
__days/months, which will include remote localion monitaring using ____ Aclive ____Passive Global Posttioning Salellite,
(GPS) tracking. You shall abide by the rules and regulations of the Parilcipant Agreement Form, During this time, you will remain
al your.place of residence excepl for employment and other activities approved in advance by your prebation officer. You will
maintaln a telephons at your place of residence without "caller 1D," “call forwarding,” “call waiting,” *call back/cali black,” 8 modem
ora poriable cordless telephone for the above period as directed by the probation officer. At the direction of the probation officer,
you shall wear a transmitter and be required to carry a trackiig devlce. You shall pay all or part of the costs of the program based
on the abllity to pay as directed by the probation officer, '

Communily Service: The defendant shall perform 200_hours of communily service work without pay, at a location approved by
the probation officer, at a minimum rate of four hours per week, 1o be compleled during the term of probation.

Sex Offender Search & Selzure Condltion: I required {o register under the Sex Offender Registration and Nolification Act, the
defendant shall submit his person, and any property, hause, residence, vehicle, papers, compuler, olher electronic communication
or data storage devices or media, and effects to search at any time, with or without a warrant, by any law enforcement or probation
officer wilh reasonable susplclon concerning a violation of & condilion of probatlon or supervised release or unlawful conduct by

- the person, and by any probation officer in the lawiul discharge of the officer's supervision funclions,
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GRIMINAL MONETARY PENALTIES! SCHEDULE

The defendanl shall pay the followlng lota] criminal monetary penallies in accordance with the schedule of payments
sel forth. Unless.the Court has expressly ordered olherwise, If this judgment Imposes imprisonmenl, payment of criminal
monelary penallles Is due during Imprisonment. Criminal Monetary Penalties, excep! those paymenls made through Federal
Bureau of Prisons’ Inmale Financial Responsibilily Program shall be paid through the Clerk, United Stales Dislrict Cour, 655 E,
Cesar E. Chavez Bivd, Room G-65, San Antonio, Texas 78208, . .

The defendant shall receive credit for all payments previously made loward any criminal'monelary penallies imposed,

Assessment Fine Restitution
TOTAL: $200.00 50 $83,754.45

Special Assessment

IUis ordered that the defendant'shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $200,00.
' Fine
The fine is waived because of the defendant's Inability to pay.

- Restltutlon - Jointly and Severally

The defendant shall pay restitution in the amount of $83,754,45 through the Clerk, U.S. District Court, for distribution to
the payee(s), No further payment shall be required after the sum of the amounts actually paid by the defendants/participants .
Bhavesh J. Shah (1) and Andrea Christina |turrleta (2) has fully covered all the compensable injuries,

The Court diredls the United States Probation Office lo provide personal identifier informatlon of victims by subr'n'itti-ng a
. "reference list" under seal Pursuant to E-Government Act of 2002" to the District Clerk within ten(10) days after the criminal

* . Judgment has been enlered,

Amount of Restitution

Name of Payee

Medicare . $73,344.,88
Medicald - , - ' $10,400.57
TOTAL L : 58375445

Schedule of Payments

4

Payment of the Special Assessment shall be made at the rate of no less than $20,00 per month, due by the third day of
each month beginning Immediately. The Cour Imposed payment schedule shall not prevent stalutarily authorlzed coliection
efforts by the U,S, Allorney. The defendant shall cooperale fully with the U.S, Atlormey and the U.S, Probation Office to make
payment in full as soon as possible, .

I the defendant makes a parllal paymen, sach payee shall recelve an epproXimaiely proporfioned payment, unless speciiied otherwise In the priody order or
percenlage payment column above, However, pursuant {o,J8 U,5.C, § sﬁ'ﬁdgi), all pon-fedoral viclims must be pald before (he Unlted Slajes |s pald, .

oo e T oM L .
IFihe fine Is not pald) the-cour mrapsehlende the,defandant lo sny sentence which might have been orginally imposed, Ses 18 U,8,C, §3614,

The defendani shall pay Inlerest on any fine or restliution of more than $2,600,00, unless the fine or restiiulion 1s paid In full before the fileenth day siter he dale of
the Judgmenl, pursuant te 18 U,5.C. §3612(3),, All prjxrpan! options fmay be subjscl lo penslites jor delinquency and default, pursuanl o 16 U,S,C, §3812(g),
) ' . . vk '

, Paymenls sheil be.applied In the foltowing arder; (1) assassment, (2) realitution principal, (3) restiulion Interest, (4) fine princlpal, (6) communlly restitulion, () fine *
Interes!, {7) penalilés, and (8) costs, Including cost r:f Rms_qgg‘llnn snid cour] cosls, L '

. s b R el Ty R .
Flndings, for the folal umoupL:JquseE ;grewgwlgqtg-w\der Chaplers 108A, 110, 110A, and 113A ol Title 18 for offenses commilled on or afler Seplember 13, 1994,
AN PRI A MR , .

bul baloro Aprl 23, 1806, % 1+ 4% o




